
 

1 
 

Minutes 
Essex County Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
November 1, 2022 

7:00 P.M. 

A regular meeting of the Essex County Planning Commission was held on November 1, 2022, at 
the Essex County School Board Office, Tappahannock, Virginia. 

Present: 
David Jones – Chairman 
Dr. G. R. Quarles – Vice Chairman 
Angelo Stevens  
Trent Taliaferro 
Benjamin Scott Mundie 
Jean Segar - virtually 
 
Absent: 
Cheryl Evans 
  
 
Also present: 
Kelly McKnight – Planning and Zoning Office Manager  
Rob Hodges – Planning and Zoning Administrator 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

David Jones, Chairman, called the regular meeting of the Planning Commission to order at 7:00 
pm. 

ROLL CALL 

Chairman Jones asked Ms. McKnight to call the roll. A quorum was met. 

MEETING AGENDA 

The New Business was moved to before the Old Business. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the October 4, 2022, Planning 
Commission meeting. AYES: 5 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 2 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Chairman Jones opened the Public Comments session and as no one came forward to speak, 
closed the session. 



 

2 
 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Cherie Monterio 

She stated that she has been in the housing program for the past 20 years. This a presentation 
for the Brays Fork redevelopment.  

Presentation is attached. 

In September they submitted their general plan to the zoning administrator to request a public 
hearing. In October they have met with different groups. They would like to submit or present 
the preliminary site plan in December, to hopefully receive approval in the first quarter. They 
would like to submit their financing applications in March. They need the zoning approval for 
that. They would like to submit final site plans and permits in the fall. They would like to close 
quickly once financing and permits have been approved.   

Chairman Jones opened it up to questions from the Commission.  

Commissioner Taliaferro asked what percentage of the units that you see would be in the 50%, 
60%, and 80% category on the AMI? Mrs. Monterio stated that they are still working on that 
and would have a number when they submit the preliminary site plan.  

Commissioner Taliaferro then asked about the flexibility of uses is desired…What circumstances 
would you change an office building into a multifamily building? Mrs. Monterio stated that you 
develop flex spaces they are to commercial standards you can switch the use from an office 
building to a multifamily home.  

Commissioner Taliaferro asked what the probability or possibility that this development would 
turn into an R-4. Mrs. Monterio stated that she doesn’t see that occurring because leasers look 
at the density and the activity. 

Chairman Jones asked if they would be asking for relief from the new zoning ordinances since it 
states what the percentages need to be in a PUD. Will that be part of the next site plan? Mrs. 
Monterio stated they don’t want to ask for a lot of relief and would like to stay within the 
ordinance. 

Commissioner Taliaferro asked what they classify mid-rise. Mrs. Monterio stated that mid-rise 
is 2-4 stories and they would use multiple levels for their buildings. 

Commissioner Taliaferro asked if the work-force housing that is listed is limited to teachers, 
health care workers, law enforcement, human service employees that you mentioned? Mrs. 
Monterio said yes. Commissioner Taliaferro asked if a retail clerk at Walmart wanted to live 
there, they couldn’t? Mrs. Monterio said that she would be interested to see what their 
thoughts are on that. Based on their research these are the ones with the largest needs. From a 



 

3 
 

financing standpoint there are a lot of financing opportunities that they can use based on these 
restrictions. 

Commissioner Taliaferro asked in the density section 106 units up to 400 individuals, that is 
about 4 seniors per unit. A 1 bedroom is 1-2 people, and a 2 bedroom is 2-4 people after doing 
the math they will specify in their next plan exact numbers. With the work force housing you 
have 28 units up to 62 people. You would think that with the work force housing they may have 
children. Mrs. Monterio stated that most of the work force housing would be 1-bedroom units.  

Commissioner Taliaferro stated that in the importance of community development you 
mentioned the term tax revenue. Have you done the math to see how much Essex County is 
going to get out of the deal? Mrs. Monterio stated that is the next big thing they will dive into. 
After they get to full density, they will do an economic impact study the study will give us the 
number of jobs, amount of revenue and the number of school impact. 

Commissioner Mundie asked if the goal with the project to satisfy a need regionally or in the 
county? Mrs. Monterio said their focus is on the county but also there is a need a in the region 
to bring them back to the county. The data is regional market study. Commissioner Mundie 
stated he would be interested in knowing the need from the county vs. the need from the 
region. 

Vice Chairman Quarles stated that he heard a lot about community and then about a private 
road vs. a public road. How does the private road vs public road works in the overall picture 
with how you are trying to make this wellness and center available outside of the PUD. Is there 
a location in Virginia that has something similar to what you want to bring to Essex County to 
see what they are actually wanting? Mrs. Monterio stated they can get a list of similar projects. 
All they mean from private road is it would have access roads to it. It also does not mean gravel 
or anything less than what you would expect from entering a development. 

Vice Chairman Quarles asked about a senior community doesn’t want a lot of traffic. Mrs. 
Monterio stated that they would do a traffic impact study. Also, that is why the commercial is 
more toward the Richmond highway and the residential would be further back. They will also 
use the natural terrain, using the stream as that defining point of the public/housing portion. 

Chairman Jones asked what the square footage of a 2 bedroom would be? They stated about 
1100 sq ft.  

Chairman Jones also asked if the next time they meet with them would they present the 
comments from the other groups that they have met with? Mrs. Monterio stated that they 
could include that in the narrative but there will also be a staff comments section.  

Chairman Jones asked if the county decides to rezone this area for a PUD and you all do not get 
your funding or have a problem with DEQ what is plan B if you do not get the funding? Mrs. 
Monterio stated that they would break up the project and move forward with what we could 
get financing for and then try for other financing in smaller sections. 



 

4 
 

Commissioner Taliaferro asked if they get total financing what is the overall timeline for the 
construction of the project? Mrs. Monterio stated that it could range anywhere from 2-3 years. 

Commissioner Mundie asked about the neighborhoods map they had two cul-de-sacs with 
arrows pointing out of them is your plan to connect them to Mt. Clement? Mrs. Monterio 
stated that they are going to put stub-outs so that they are lined up for future development.  

Vice Chairman Quarles commended them for their presentation.  



 

5 
 



 

6 
 



 

7 
 



 

8 
 



 

9 
 



 

10 
 



 

11 
 



 

12 
 



 

13 
 



 

14 
 



 

15 
 



 

16 
 



 

17 
 



 

18 
 



 

19 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

20 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 

none 

OLD BUSINESS 

Chairman Jones stated with the County comprehensive plan that Board of Supervisors 
Chairman Rob Akers said they are going to put money into the next year’s budget for us to do 
the project.  

ADJOURN 

Having no further discussion, a motion to adjourn was made and seconded. AYES: 5, NAYES: 0, 
ABSENT: 2 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Chairman 

 

 

 


